
AGENDA 
Commissioners' Meeting 

August 8, 2023 
5:00 P.M. 

  $382,161.36 
$382,161.36 

1. Call to Order/ Pledge of Allegiance

2. Approval of the Agenda

3. Commissioner Absence

4. Communications

5. Approve minutes of July 25, 2023 Commissioner meeting

6. Voucher Approval
• Accounts Payable Vouchers 199770 - 199840:

GRAND TOTAL VOUCHERS:
7. Local 3390 Reports

8. Chiefs Reports

9. Standing Committee Reports

10. Chairman’s Report

11. 2022 Bond Update

12. OLD BUSINESS
a.

13. NEW BUSINESS
a. Personal Services Contract for Information Systems Manager (Travis Wagenmann)
b. Mid-year finance update
c.
d.

14. Open Public Comment (state your name for the record, you will have 3 minutes)

15. GOOD OF THE ORDER

16. SPECIAL INTERESTS/UPCOMING EVENTS

Adjourn Meeting.  Next regular meeting will be Tuesday, August 22, 2023, at 5:00 PM

DRAFT



COMMISSIONERS’ MEETING MINUTES 
July 25, 2023 

Chairman Urvina called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Present: Commissioners Urvina, Wilsie, Entze, Sutich and Nelson, F/C D. Doan, A/Cs P. Oldenburg, 
T. Meyer, J. Black, Finance Director Krystal Hackmeister (virtual), Human Resources Program
Manager Janelle Gunder (filling in for EA T. Vandervaate).

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
Commissioners Wilsie and Entze moved and seconded approval of the agenda as presented. With no 
further discussion, the MOTION CARRIED by unanimous roll call vote. 

COMMISSIONER ABSENCE 
Commissioner Nelson announced that he will be absent for the Board meeting on 8/08/2023. 

COMMUNICATIONS 

MINUTES AND BLANKET VOUCHERS 
Commissioners Wilsie and Nelson moved and seconded approval of the July 11, 2023 meeting 
minutes.  With no further discussion, the MOTION CARRIED by unanimous roll call vote. 

Commissioners Nelson and Sutich moved and seconded approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers 
199677-199769 as set forth in the agenda for a total consideration of $2,468,413.97.  With no further 
discussion, the MOTION CARRIED by unanimous roll call vote. 

LOCAL 3390 REPORTS 

CHIEFS REPORTS 

Chief Oldenburg reported: 
• Three (3) audits closing soon (State Annual Financial, Single Point, Safer Grant post

compliance audit) and a fourth audit is starting. Will provide an update at the next Board
meeting.

• Mid-year financial report will be presented at next Board meeting.
• SCBA financing in progress. Once finalized, resolutions will be presented to the Board to

approve expenditures using bond funds.

Chief Meyer reported: 
• EMS Division (DC Dumas) working with local law enforcement (county/city) regarding

Mental Health transports and safety considerations during these transports.
• Training Division hosted the Special Operations team from Kitsap County.  In

DRAFT



Board of Commissioners 
06-13-2023 Meeting Minutes 

Page 2 of 3 

August/September will host Tacoma Fire for trench rescue drills. 
• Attended radio operations meeting at South Sound 911 regarding the move to one system.
• The Promotional Process has been announced and members are starting to prepare.
• Completed work for the Pacific NW Structure Protection Plan. This plan will create operating

procedures between Oregon and Washington and incident management teams between all
jurisdictions in WA State. Completed the plan and drafts are under review.

• Run card package changes last week. Phase 1 went into effect, right-sizing resources. Pending
lower activity calls to manage resources. Reduce reliance on mutual aid partners.

• Met with AC of South Kitsap. Discussed having a mutual dispatch.

Discussion followed regarding Mental Health transports.  

Chief Black reported: 
• Working with the City of Tacoma on adding a radio tower at Station 53. Consultants reported

that FAA has a concern about the height of the tower in regards to the airport.
• On Monday, September 11th at 0900 will have ceremony of recognition.
• Annual banquet will return in March 2024.
• Engine Spec Committee has done great work and is looking forward to ordering engines soon.

Chief Doan reported: 
• Attended the Gig Harbor City Council meeting where they passed a resolution unanimously,

endorsing and supporting the upcoming levy.
• Chief Doan and AC Oldenburg will be at Station 53 at 1000 on 7/26/23, to meet with citizens

of Fox Island and answer questions about the levy.
• Prepping for mediation on 8/11/23.
• Attending the FICRA fair on 8/12/23.
• Attending the County Chief’s meeting on 8/27/23. EMS concerns and streamlining processes

will be discussed.
• Command Staff would like to discuss and propose future resolution to change post- 

retirement benefit from October to August, for ease of budget planning. More information to
come at future Board meetings.

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS 

FINANCE REPORT 
Krystal Hackmeister, Finance Director, provided overview of June 2023 financial report. 

CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 

2022 CAPITAL BOND PROJECTS UPDATE 
Chief Johnson was absent. Chief Doan provided update regarding the permitting and review process 
for several projects underway.  Starting design of Station 51.  

DRAFT



Board of Commissioners 
06-13-2023 Meeting Minutes 

Page 3 of 3 

OLD BUSINESS  

NEW BUSINESS 
A. WSRB report provided by AC Black. Every five (5) years fire departments in WA State go through a

rating process.  Previous rating in 2018 was a 4 for City of Gig Harbor and a 5 for Pierce County.  New
rating in 2023 is a 4 for City of Gig Harbor and Pierce County is a 4 (in areas with hydrants), 5 (in areas
without hydrants) and 9 (in areas 5+ miles from staffed fire station).

Discussion followed regarding impacts and how to improve rating in the future. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 

SPECIAL INTERESTS/UPCOMING EVENTS 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to discuss, Chairman Urvina adjourned the meeting at 5:41 pm.  
The next regular meeting will be 5:00pm on Tuesday, August 8, 2023. 

Chairman/Commissioner 

Commissioner 

Commissioner 

Commissioner 

Commissioner 

_______________________________________ 
Attest:  District Secretary 

DRAFT



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE: Dollar Amount TOTAL

Voucher Nos: 199770 through 199770 90,372.84$   90,372.84$   
199771 through 199809 152,093.61$   152,093.61$  

242,466.45$   242,466.45$  

242,466.45$   

VOUCHER APPROVAL: July 25, 2023
APPROVED BY ASSISTANT CHIEF OLDENBURG

Total Accounts Payable Invoices:

GRAND TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE:

PAYABLES RUN FOR COUNTY'S WARRANT PRINTING ON 7/26/23



















ACCOUNTS PAYABLE: Dollar Amount TOTAL

Voucher Nos: 199810 through 199810 1,061.85$                  1,061.85$                            
199811 through 199840 138,633.06$              138,633.06$                        

139,694.91$              139,694.91$                        
 

139,694.91$                     

VOUCHER APPROVAL: August 1, 2023
APPROVED BY FINANCE DIRECTOR HACKMEISTER

Total Accounts Payable Invoices:

GRAND TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE:

PAYABLES RUN FOR COUNTY'S WARRANT PRINTING ON 8/2/23





















1 

PIERCE COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT NO. 5 

Employment Agreement for Exempt Personnel 

This Employment Agreement is made by and between Pierce County Fire Protection 
District No. 5, hereinafter referred to as "the District" and Travis Wagenmann, hereinafter 
referred to as "the Employee," both of whom agree and understand as follows: 

WHEREAS, the District wishes to employ the services of Travis Wagenmann as an 
Information Systems Manager for the District; and 

WHEREAS, the District and the Employee desire to provide certain terms and 
conditions of employment, salary and benefits, procedures and requirements regarding the 
employment of the Employee by the District; and 

WHEREAS, the Employee wishes to accept employment in that capacity under the 
terms and conditions recited herein; 

NOW THEREFORE, the District and the Employee agree as follows: 

1. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The duties and responsibilities of the Employee shall be in accordance with
Washington State statutes and case law, resolutions of the District, and such policies
or standard operating procedures that shall be adopted from time to time by the
Board of Fire Commissioners of the District, hereinafter referred to as "the Board."
The duties and responsibilities of the Employee are outlined in the job description.

2. TERM OF AGREEMENT

This agreement is effective from August 16, 2023 through December 31, 2024. During
the last year of the agreement, the parties may discuss renewal of the employment
agreement, for a three-year term, or any other term upon which the parties may agree.
The agreement may be renewed upon and subject to satisfactory performance
evaluations conducted by the Board or Fire Chief on a regularly scheduled basis, to
be performed at least annually. See Section 5 below.

2.1 Employee is required to serve a probationary period of twelve (12) months of
continuous service commencing from the date of their employment. During 
this period, Employee may be terminated or disciplined at the sole discretion 
of the District. A probationary new employee may only grieve disciplinary 
action up to and including Step 1 of the Grievance Procedure contained in 
Section 22 of this agreement. Termination of a new employee during the 
probationary period shall not be subject to the Grievance Procedure. 

DRAFT



2 

3. DISABILITY

3.1 The base wage of all Employees will be inclusive of the current premium
amount of a long-term disability plan. The District agrees to pay the 
Employee's premiums in the form of a monthly payroll deduction from the 
Employee's salary so long as the Employee chooses the District sponsored 
plan. 

3.2 Other plans chosen by the Employee will require that the Employee make 
payment directly as the chosen plan may require. 

4. SALARY & LONGEVITY

The 2023 base salary shall be $12,339.83 per month/$148,077.96 annually. If the
current job description is expanded to include additional accountabilities, the District
will consider reopening wage negotiations for a possible increase in salary.

4.1 Calendar Year 2024 will include an annual COLA equal to 100% CPI-U (2%
min to 5% maximum Seattle June-June). COLA for 2025 will be determined. 

4.2 Longevity: The District longevity pay plan provides an additional 2% of gross 
salary for employees with 5-9 years of service and an additional 2% of gross 
salary for employees with 10-14 years of service and an additional 2% for 15-
19 years of service and an additional 2% for 20 years of service and an 
additional 1% for 25 years of service and an additional 1% for 30 or more 
years of service to Pierce County Fire District #5. 

4.3 Employee portion of the Washington State Labor and Industries Insurance 
(L&I) will be paid in full by the Employee via a salary/payroll deduction. 

5. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

The District shall review and evaluate the performance of the Employee at least once
annually. A review and evaluation of performance shall be in accordance with
criteria developed by the Board and shall define goals and performance objectives for
the Employee as necessary for proper performance of the Employee's duties.

6. HOURS OF WORK

It is recognized that the Employee is required by the job description to devote a great
deal of time outside normal office hours to the business of the District. The
Employee shall be considered a supervisory, executive or administrative employee
who is qualified for an exemption from the overtime provisions of the federal Fair
Labor Standards Act. As such, the Employee has no standard workweek and must
accomplish all tasks within the time or hours deemed appropriate by the Employee.
Because of the excess hours worked, over and beyond a standard workweek, the
Employee's pay shall not be reduced below their monthly salary, even if all earned
leaves are exhausted, for absences of less than one day.

DRAFT



3 

7. VACATION

On Aug 16, 2023, a lump sum of 160 vacation hours will be deposited into the
employee’s vacation bank. In the event that the employee resigns or separates from
employment for any reason with the District within the first twelve (12) months of
employment, the employee is not entitled to cash out the employee’s remaining
vacation balance.

7.1 VACATION ACCRUAL

The employee shall accrue vacation to be credited monthly as follows: 

Completed Years of Service Vacation Earned Monthly 

Years 1-4 11.8 hours 

Years 5-9 (increase at 49th month) 15.2 hours 

Years 10-14 (increase at 109th month) 20.3 hours 

Years 15-19 (increase at 169th month) 21.9 hours 

Years 20-24 (increase at 229th month) 23.6 hours 

Years 25+ (increase at 289th month) 25.3 hours 

7.2 VACATION CAP 

The maximum accrual of vacation shall be as follows: 

The employee’s annual accrual (fixed total based on years of service) 
multiplied by four (4). Vacation time accumulated in excess of the above 
maximum, if unused, shall be forfeited by the Employee as of Employee's 
anniversary date.  

The District will also offer a buyout of up to a maximum of one (1) year accrued 
vacation, not to exceed three (3) times during the Employee's tenure to be paid at the 
regular hourly rate as taxable income. The Employee must retain a minimum of two 
(2) weeks' vacation to be taken in a twelve (12) month period.

8. SICK LEAVE

8.1 Employee shall be granted a starting balance of 160 hours of sick leave, and shall
thereafter accrue sick leave at the rate of 16 hours for each full month of service. 
Maximum sick leave accrual shall be 1040 hours. No sick leave shall accrue 
during leaves of absence without pay or layoffs. 

8.2 Upon accrual of 1,040 hours, the Employee will continue to accrue excess 
sick leave to a maximum of 96 hours. When the excess equals 96 hours, the 

DRAFT



4  

District will buy-back the excess hours at 35% of its value based upon the 
Employee's regular hourly rate. 

 
8.3 Upon separation, unused sick leave will be purchased by the District at 35% 

of its value based upon the Employees regular hourly rate. To be eligible to 
receive this sick leave purchase the Employee must have completed five (5) 
years of employment with the District (or have reached retirement eligibility). 
Said purchase shall be cashed out. Employees who voluntarily resign their 
position prior to retirement eligibility shall receive no such payment. 

 
8.4 In the event of a line of duty death, unused sick leave will be purchased by the 

District at 100% of its value based upon the Employees regular hourly rate. Said 
purchase shall be cashed out. 

 
9. AUTOMOBILE & CELL-PHONE 
 

9.1 The Employee may be assigned a District owned automobile to effectively perform 
their assigned duties. Usage of this vehicle will be governed by District policy. The 
District shall be responsible for paying for any insurance with respect to such 
vehicle, and for the purchase, operation, maintenance, repair and replacement of 
said vehicle. Such vehicles are not intended for personal use. Reasonable use of a 
personal nature shall be permitted in order to preserve the Assistant Chiefs ability 
to respond to alarms when required. 

 
9.2 The Employee is expected to carry a District issued cell phone in order to 

effectively perform the duties of this position. The Employee may use the District 
cell phone for reasonable personal use.  

 
 

10. DEFERRED COMPENSATION 
 

The Employee will be offered the opportunity to defer compensation to an annuity 
plan through any District sponsored plan as outlined below. The District shall 
contribute up to 6% of gross annual income for a calendar year, matching the equal 
participation of the Employee, or the following, whichever is greater: 

   
 Effective March 1, 2023 - An amount no greater than $725. 

Effective January 1, 2024 – An amount no greater than $725. 
 
When an Employee reaches age 52 and has a minimum of 10 (ten) years of PERS 
service credit, the District shall match up to 8.5% of gross annual income per 
calendar year, matching the equal participation of the Employee. 
 
For purposes of this section, gross annual income is defined as base salary plus longevity 
and education on the first day of the calendar year or the effective date of the agreement, 
whichever occurs later. Up to 1/12 of the gross annual income percentages in this section 
may be matched by the District per month.  
 

DRAFT



5 

11. RETIREMENT PARTICIPATION

The District agrees to contribute the Employer portion of the State of Washington
PERS retirement plan, and the Employee agrees to contribute the Employee portion
to the same plan for their own benefit.

12. MEDICAL/DENTAL INSURANCE COVERAGE

Medical, Dental and Vision insurance coverage shall be provided by a mutually
agreed to plan.  Medical/Vision coverage will be effective the first of the month
following date of hire and Dental/HRA coverage will start as of date of hire. The
District agrees to pay the Employee/dependent's premiums at 100%. The minimum
District contribution to the Employee's HRA account shall be $535 per month.

13. PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The District hereby agrees to budget for and to pay the reasonable travel and other
expenses of Employee for professional development of the Employee. The District
also agrees to budget and to pay for the reasonable travel and other expenses of
Employee for short courses, conferences and seminars that are necessary and
desirable for professional development and for the good of the District. All such
travel and other expenses shall be subject to the prior written approval of the
Board.

14. HOLIDAYS.

New Year’s Day January 1 
Martin Luther King Jr. Day Third Monday in January 
President’s Day Third Monday in February 
Memorial Day  Last Monday in May  
Independence Day  July 4th 
Labor Day   First Monday in September 
Veteran’s Day  November 11th 
Thanksgiving Day  Fourth Thursday in November 
Day after Thanksgiving Fourth Friday in November 
Christmas Eve  December 24th  
Christmas Day  December 25th  
Four (4) Floating days  Employee’s Choice 

14.1 PAY FOR HOLIDAYS. 

Employees may request pay at the regular hourly rate of pay in lieu of time 
off for floating holidays. The cumulative pay requested may not exceed 
thirty-two (32) hours annually and may be equivalent to no more than eight 
(8) hours per calendar quarter. One-quarter of the Employee's holiday
hours not used or paid in the first quarter will be cumulative to the next
quarter and so on to the fourth quarter.

DRAFT



6 

15. BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

In the event of an imminent death or death of an immediate family member,
Employee shall be granted up to five (5) days of bereavement leave. Additional
time may be considered under Emergency Leave. Said bereavement leave shall
be time off with pay. Immediate family shall be defined as the Employee's spouse
or registered domestic partner, and the son, daughter, father, mother, grandfather,
grandmother, grandchildren, brother, or sister of the Employee and the
Employee's spouse or registered domestic partner as defined and provided for in
Chapter 156 of the Laws of 2007 of the State of Washington.

16. EMERGENCY LEAVE

In the event of a family emergency that requires the presence of the Employee,
the Employee may be granted reasonable time off. If the emergency is of a
medical nature, time off shall be charged to accrued sick leave. If the emergency
is non-medical in nature, time off shall be charged to other accrued leave.

17. CLOTHING ALLOWANCE

Uniforms, if required by the District, will be provided on a fair wear and tear
basis.

18. EDUCATIONAL INCENTIVES

Employees with an Associate’s degree will receive an educational incentive equal to
2% of their base monthly wage. Those with Bachelor's or higher will receive an
additional 2% incentive.

Employees are eligible for a reimbursement of 50% of the cost for classes and
materials for enrollment in, and successful completion of, studies at an accredited
school or university. The class must be applicable to the field in which the Employee
works and have prior approval of the Fire Chief.

19. PHYSICAL FITNESS

Each full-time employee may be allowed three (3) hours per workweek, in one (1)
hour increments, for physical fitness. Physical fitness hours shall not interfere
significantly with the routine or the effectiveness of the District. Time for physical
fitness will be scheduled during the workday at a time that is mutually agreed upon
between the employee and the District. The employee will remain on District
property unless pre-approved by the District.

Any deviation from the above parameters shall be the exception rather than the rule
regarding the employee’s access to physical fitness.

DRAFT



7 

20. PROFESSIONAL AND CIVIC CLUB MEMBERSHIPS

The District recognizes the desirability of representation in and before professional,
local, civic and other organizations, and upon approval of the Board, Employee is
authorized to become a member of a reasonable number of professional, civic clubs
and other such organizations for which the District shall pay all membership related
expenses.

21. VOLUNTARY AND INVOLUNTARY REDUCTION IN GRADE

Employee may declare their intention and commitment for a voluntary reduction in
grade to any previously held position for which they are qualified. The declaration of
intention and commitment shall be in effect for one year. The District must be able to
release the Employee from the present position and have the desired position
available. Employees that are forced into an involuntary reduction in grade shall
maintain their current respective wages until such time that the base pay matches the
current salary. A reduction in grade will not displace other members from
permanently assigned positions.

22. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES

The purpose of this procedure is to provide an orderly method of resolving all
disputes involving interpretation of this agreement, and any other work-related
problems. A determined effort shall be made to settle any differences at the lowest
possible level in the grievance procedure, and there shall be no suspension of work or
interference with the operation of the District as a result of the filing of a grievance.
An Employee's failure to use the procedure in a timely manner shall constitute a full
and complete waiver of the grievance. The District's failure to comply with time
limits shall not constitute a waiver of the Employee's grievance, but shall also not
constitute an admission that the grievance is valid. Any time limits stipulated herein
may be extended for stated periods of time by the parties by mutual agreement in
writing. The parties may also waive any step(s) in an effort to expedite the matter.

Step One. The Employee shall include the following in any written grievance: (1)
statement of grievance and relevant facts; (2) specific provisions of the agreement
violated, if any; (3) remedy sought. Any grievance shall be filed in writing with the
District Secretary or in the absence of the Secretary, with any member of the Board
within 14 calendar days after the occurrence complained of. The Board shall conduct
a hearing within 14 calendar days of receipt by the Secretary or Board member.
Within 14 calendar days following the hearing, the decision of the Board shall be
transmitted in writing to the Employee.

Step Two. If the grievance is not satisfactorily resolved at step one, the Employee may
within 14 calendar days thereafter request that the matter be submitted to an arbitrator.
The parties agree to select an arbitrator through the auspices of the Public
Employment Relations Commission or the American Arbitration Association. Any
arbitrator so selected shall have no power to render a decision that would add to,

DRAFT



8  

subtract from, or alter, change or modify the terms of this agreement. The arbitrator's 
power shall be limited to interpretation and application of this agreement. Any 
decision of the arbitrator shall be binding upon both parties. Each party shall bear 
one-half the cost of arbitration. In the event that an arbitrator orders additional 
compensation or back pay for the aggrieved Employee, such compensation shall not 
extend back to a date more than 60 days before the filing of the grievance. 

 
23. DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE 
 

Generally, the District will follow concepts of progressive discipline and agrees that 
all discipline shall be only for just cause. Discipline, in the appropriate cases may 
include oral reprimand, written reprimand, suspension for up to 30 days without pay, 
and discharge. 

 
23.1 PROCEDURES-DISCIPLINE FOR CAUSE 

 
In the event that any formal charges are filed with the Board, by any Board 
member, or Fire Chief, the District has the option of suspending the Employee 
with pay and benefits, if a majority of the Board agrees that continued presence 
on the job by the Employee would be dangerous to any other Employee, or 
present a safety or security risk to the District. Such suspension with pay shall 
only be during the course of any investigation. A just cause determination 
may be made by the immediate supervisor if the preferred discipline is only 
oral or written reprimand. However, before any suspension or discharge may 
be decided, the Employee must be afforded the opportunity for a hearing in 
which they have the opportunity to respond to any formal charges. Prior to any 
such hearing, the Employee shall have been given written notice setting forth 
any such charges at least 14 days prior to such hearing. At such a hearing, the 
Employee is entitled to be represented by counsel and to call witnesses on 
their behalf, and to confront the witnesses against them. At the conclusion of 
the hearing, a determination by a majority vote of the Board is sufficient to 
sustain a finding of just cause to support suspension or discharge, which 
determination shall be the final determination of the District. In the event that 
the Employee is terminated for just cause, including but not limited to 
conviction of a felony, the District shall have no obligation to pay severance 
pay. 

 
23.2 DEMOTION 

 
If the District decides to not renew or continue with the Employee's contract, 
the District may choose to reassign the Employee to a position at their 
previously held rank. The Employee will be advised in writing at least ninety 
(90) days prior to the expiration of the agreement. 

 
23.3 TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE 

 
If the District, due to reorganization, layoff, downsizing, or similar reasons decides 
to layoff the Employee, just cause is not needed. The District may in such 

DRAFT



9 

circumstances terminate the Employee's employment with six (6) months' written 
notice. In the event that the Employee is not demoted and is terminated the 
following will apply: 

23.3.1 The Employee will be paid a severance package comprised of six 
months of salary and benefits, and 

23.3.2 The Employee's accrued sick leave balance will be cashed out at 
50% of the Employee's regular hourly rate, and 

23.3.3 Items 23.3.1 and 23.3.2 will only be paid if the Employee is 
terminated without cause. 

23.4 RESIGNATION 

In the event that the Employee voluntarily resigns their position with the District, 
Employee shall give the District at least thirty (30) days written notice, unless the 
parties otherwise agree. 

23.5 FINAL PAYMENT 

In the event that the Employee is terminated under this section, or they voluntarily 
resign their position, the Employee is entitled to be paid in a lump sum for all 
accrued vacation, accrued sick leave and floating holidays. 

24. GENERAL PROVISIONS

24.1 Survival. To the extent required by the circumstances, any rights of the parties
created by this agreement may survive termination of employment hereunder. 

24.2 Notices. Any notice required or permitted to be given under this agreement shall 
be sufficient, if in writing and delivered personally or sent by registered or certified 
mail to the Employee at his/her residence, or to the District at its principal office. 

24.3 Complete Agreement. This agreement contains the entire agreement between the 
parties hereto relating to the subject matter hereof, and no modifications of this 
agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and signed by the parties hereto. 
Addendums authorized by the District may periodically update this contract to 
ensure continuity with like exempt contracts (i.e., Payroll Program Manager, 
Executive Assistant). These addendums will outline modifications to 
compensation or benefits extended to exempt personnel and become a permanent 
part of this agreement at the time of Board and Employee approval. 

24.4 Severability. Any provisions hereof which are prohibited by law or are 
unenforceable shall be inoperative and all of the remaining provisions of this 
agreement shall, nevertheless, continue in effect. 

DRAFT



10  

24.5 Employee's Death. In the event of the Employee's death, all wages and 
benefits due the Employee shall be handled in accordance with the probate laws 
of the State of Washington. 

 
24.6 Governing Law. This agreement shall be governed by and construed in 

accordance with the laws of the State of Washington. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this agreement was approved at a regular meeting of the Board of Fire 
Commissioners, Pierce County Fire Protection District No. 5. 
 
District:      Employee: 
 
 
___________________________   ________________________________ 
Chairman      Name of Employee 
 
 
___________________________ 
Commissioner 
 
 
___________________________ 
Commissioner 
 
 
___________________________ 
Commissioner 
 
 
___________________________ 
Commissioner 

 
 
___________________________ 
District Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT



11 

ADDENDUM A TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

MOVING EXPENSES: 

The District shall provide the Employee a one-time reimbursement of up to $6,500.00 to assist 
with relocation costs, including temporary housing. The Employee shall provide receipts to 
support the reimbursement. If the Employee voluntarily resigns their position with the District or 
is terminated for cause within three (3) years of the employment start date, the Employee shall 
repay these funds at a prorated percentage based on time of service. 

DRAFT



2023 Mid-Year Financial 
Review

K.Hackmeister, Finance Director

August 2023



Agenda

 Assess status of the first half of 2023

 Focus on key issues, goals and objectives

 2022 Financial Audit update

 2024 Budget Timeline

 Questions & Follow-up



Mid-Year Key Dates

 April 2023 – Multi-Year Capital Plan Developed

 April 25, 2023 – Levy Lid Lift Resolution for August 2023 Ballot

 June to August – State Audit in Progress

 August 1 – Election Day

 August 17 – State Audit anticipated completion



2023 Cash & Investments

Interest Received 
in 2023

Ending Fund Cash & 
Investments 

General Expense 129,864 15,085,895

Reserve Fund 190,640 8,362,525

GO Bond (Debt Service Fund) - 1,042,838

Capital Fund 1,198,653 50,327,062

Total 1,519,127 74,818,320

PCSORT (Fiscal Custodian) 108,745

• Investments held in the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP)
• June’s LGIP Rate was 5.183%



Ambulance Transport & GEMT

Budget Actuals

GEMT* 1,690,000 1,152,094

Ambulance 
Transport

1,259,000 1,032,724

Total 2,949,000 2,184,818

*GEMT was previously budgeted in Charges for Services

 50,000

 250,000

 450,000

 650,000

EMS Transport Collections 2022 and 2023

Ambulance & Emergency Aid GEMT Payment Program



Revenues
2022 
Actuals

2023 
Budget

2023 YTD % Collected

Cash Forward - 871,400 871,400 100%

Taxes 27,757,177 32,153,373 17,534,456 55%

Intergovernmental* 2,390,814 1,744,125 1,606,668 92%

Charges for Services* 2,304,521 1,674,399 1,114,383 67%

Interest & Other Earnings 154,003 142,135 154,084 108%

Non-Revenue/Transfers 8,264 303,843 - -

Other Financing Sources 11,793 - - -

Total 32,626,572 36,889,275 21,280,991 58%

*GEMT is listed in Intergovernmental, previously budgeted in Charges for Services



Expenses
Category 2022 

Actuals
2023 

Budget
2023 
YTD

% 
Spent

Salaries 26,748,941 22,983,970 10,863,162 47.3%

Benefits 6,885,138 3,259,967 47.3%

Supplies 2,002,431 1,959,898 615,866 31.4%

Services 2,930,913 3,731,016 1,388,344 37.2%

Capital 351,600 1,011,000 492,072 48.7%

Total 32,033,884 36,571,022 16,619,411 45.4%



GO Bond Fund Update

Revenue YTD Expenses YTD

Cash Forward (from 2022) 143,711

Taxes (Excess Levy) 2,076,969

Debt Payment – Interest 1,034,274

Debt Service Costs 143,569

Total 2,220,680 1,177,842

June Ending Fund 
Balance*

1,042,838

*Fund Balance will be applied to scheduled debt repayment in December.



Capital Fund Update

Capital Projects January February March April May June
Jan-June 

YTD
Project 
Consulting, M&O 2,049 433 1 3,000 5,483

Fire Station 53 1,033 13,721 16,674 50,523 54,713 18,554 155,218 

Fire Station 57 1,673 14,500 15,934 52,297 56,972 19,845 161,220 

Training Campus 57,530 197,988 77,884 230,852 131,668 180,599 876,520 

Total 60,235 228,258 110,925 333,672 243,353 221,997 1,198,440 



SAO Audit Update

 Audit Frequency

 Now on annual cycle for financial statements

 Accountability audit in 2024 (for 2022 and 2023), then will move to annual cycle

 Included financial statements and single point audits

 Audit performed June through August

 Audit report to be published by the end of the month at:

 https://sao.wa.gov/reports-data/audit-reports/

https://sao.wa.gov/reports-data/audit-reports/


SAO Audit in progress Update

 Financial Statements

 2022 – in progress, no findings

 Single Point (for federal grants over $750k)

 2022 – in progress, no findings

 Exit Conference scheduled for August 17, 2023

 Report will be published by the end of the month



2023 Upcoming Milestones

August

• August 18th - Certification of Election
• LOCAL Program Participation

Sept-Oct
• Budget Hearings

November
• Budget Adoption



2023 Budget Timeline

Sept
• 9/12 Publish Budget Timeline in Board Packets 
• 9/26 Budget Hearing – First Draft

Oct
• 10/10 Budget Hearing – Second Draft
• 10/24 Budget Hearing – Revenue Hearing & Final Draft

Nov
• 11/14 Budget Adoption by Board of Fire Commissioners
• 11/30 Budget due to County Assessor’s Office

Note: The Board of Fire Commissioners may conduct additional Special Meetings for 
the specific purpose of further considering budget issues. 


	2023-08-08 AGENDA
	August 8, 2023

	Commissioner Mtg 07-25-2023
	COMMISSIONERS’ MEETING MINUTES
	APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA
	COMMISSIONER ABSENCE
	Commissioner Nelson announced that he will be absent for the Board meeting on 8/08/2023.
	COMMUNICATIONS
	LOCAL 3390 REPORTS
	CHIEFS REPORTS
	STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS
	FINANCE REPORT
	Krystal Hackmeister, Finance Director, provided overview of June 2023 financial report.
	CHAIRMAN’S REPORT
	2022 CAPITAL BOND PROJECTS UPDATE
	Chief Johnson was absent. Chief Doan provided update regarding the permitting and review process for several projects underway.  Starting design of Station 51.
	OLD BUSINESS
	NEW BUSINESS
	PUBLIC COMMENT
	GOOD OF THE ORDER
	ADJOURNMENT

	Voucher Approvals #1 - 07.25.23
	Voucher Approvals #2 - 07.25.23
	Voucher Totals - 07.25.23
	08 vouchers
	Voucher Totals - 08.01.23
	Voucher Approvals #1 - 08.01.23
	Voucher Approvals #2 - 08.01.23

	Wagenmann Travis_PSC_IS Manager_2023-2024
	PIERCE COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT NO. 5
	Employment Agreement for Exempt Personnel
	ADDENDUM A TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

	2023 Mid-Year Financial Review
	2023 Mid-Year Financial Review
	Agenda
	Mid-Year Key Dates
	2023 Cash & Investments
	Ambulance Transport & GEMT
	Revenues
	Expenses
	GO Bond Fund Update
	Capital Fund Update
	SAO Audit Update
	SAO Audit in progress Update
	2023 Upcoming Milestones
	2023 Budget Timeline




